EL PASO COUNTY

EST. 18

(610) 0)2¥:9)]0)

VERNON STEWART, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

COMMUNITY RESOURCES DEPARTMENT | JUSTICE SERVICES DIVISION
e ——————————————————————————————————

Community Corrections Board (CCB)
August 20, 2025, 12:15 p.m. - 1:45 p.m.
Meeting Agenda

Justice Services Building, 1% Floor Conference Room 122, 17 N. Spruce St., Colorado Springs 80905
Or join virtually via TEAMS. Join the meeting now. Email for the invitation: cassidykeltner@elpasoco.com

Or call in (audio only): 1-719-283-1263. Phone Conference ID: 248 201 081#
This meeting will be recorded.

Item Presenter Recommended Action
1. Call Meeting to Order Chair
2. Attendance Chair Roll Call

a) Introduction of members and guests
b) Requests for excused absences

3. Case Review
a) VRA Statements Tiffany Weaver Information
b) Discussion and Balloting Chair Balloting

4. Approval of Minutes & Presentation
a) Ratify meeting minutes for July 16 and the Electronic Chair Vote

meeting minutes for July 2, 9, 23, & 30, 2025

5. Program Reports
a) Embrave (ECC) Mark Wester Information
b) Community Alternatives of El Paso County (CAE) Steve Owens Information
6. Monthly Reports
a) SFY26 Financial Report MaCain Hildebrand Information
b) Provider Termination Reports MacCain Hildebrand Information
c) Staff Report MaCain Hildebrand Information
7. Old Business
8. New Business
a) Request to Reconsider CC Placement after rejection MacCain Hildebrand Vote
9. Case Review - Ballot Results Chair Information
10. Board / Staff Comments Chair Comments
11. Adjournment

Next meeting date: Wednesday, September 17, 2025, at 12:15 p.m.

17 N. Spruce Street | Colorado Springs, Colorado | 80905

www.elpasoco.com | 719.520.6987



mailto:cassidykeltner@elpasoco.com
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YzViNjc0ZGQtNjkzNi00N2MyLTg1ZmEtZjE5MTQ3YmE3MDUy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2288b0fadb-cf34-47c4-b9ea-139963895820%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22590fcaff-a2a6-4a6d-b84d-14242b1261ee%22%7d
http://www.elpasoco.com/

4™ Judicial District Community Corrections Board (CCB)
MINUTES
July 16", 2025

Board Members: Chantel Bruce, Colleen Layman, Judge Samuel Evig, Judge Cynthia

McKedy, Brent Nelson, Deana O’Riley, Lt. Derek Mower, Manuela
Reising, LeeAnn Ortega, Ryan Graham, and Jerry Jones.

Excused absences:  Lorena Gray, Lt. Ryan Tepley, and Michael Publicker.

Unexcused absences: Erin Bents.

Staff present: MaCain Hildebrand, Daniel Huddleston, Tiffany Weaver, Cassidy Keltner,

Kristin Cronk, Mark Allison, and Christine Burns.

Guests present: Mark Wester, Steve Owens, Jenner Behan, Evan Burton, Rick Dryer, and

Gino Aviles.

Chantel Bruce called the meeting to order at 12:15 p.m. The Board meeting was held with
members attending virtually or in person.

Attendance: Chantel Bruce called roll.
Case Review:
a. VRA Statements: Statements provided by victims or victim representatives for offenders.

b. Discussion and Balloting: No Discussion. Balloting was opened.

. Approval of Minutes and Presentation:

a. Colleen Layman moved, and Lt. Derek Mower seconded ratifying the meeting
minutes for June 18" and the electronic meeting minutes from 4%, 11t & 25%, 2025;
the motion passed unanimously by roll call vote.

Program Reports:

a. Embrave (ECC): Mark Wester reported for Embrave; he reported that their residential
average daily census in June was 285 with 234 beds allocated by DCJ; that the child support
collected was $6,057.00, and restitution collected was $12,300.00; he reported that
Embrave had 68 admissions with 44 residential terminations during June; that the
successful completion rate was 72.7%, totaling 32; that the negative terminations were
27.3%, totaling 12; the negative terminations included 18.2% for escapes, totaling eight;
and 9.1% for technical violations, totaling four.

Mr. Wester reported that Embrave received 51 Diversion and 63 Transition referrals in
June; he reported that Embrave accepted 100% of auto Diversion referrals and 78% of
criteria Diversion referrals, as well as 100% of auto Transition referrals and 85% of criteria
Transition referrals.



4™ Judicial District Community Corrections Board (CCB)
MINUTES
July 16", 2025

Mr. Wester reported that current staff vacancies include one security position, four case
manager positions, one Admin position, and one support staff position; Mr. Wester
reported that the current client employment rate is 67.50%, and that the positive UA rate
for the month is 3.8%; he reported that Embrave imposed 127 client sanctions in June; that
there were seven medical emergencies during June; he reported that there were four
grievances.

Mark Wester reported on Embrave’s KPI’s; specifically, that the Q2 involuntary staff
turnover rate was 11%; that the average length of stay for staff members was 4.4 years;
that six unique kinds of staff training had been offered so far this year; and that overall
satisfaction with course offerings/trainings was 90% with 10% neutral voting.

Mr. Wester reported that Embrave conducted Victim Rights Act training for all staff,
detailing how to notify victims; he reported that Parole recently conducted a search of the
3615 Roberts Road facility.

Community Alternatives of El Paso (CAE): Evan Burton reported for CAE; he reported
that their current bed count is 231, with 235 allocated by the Division of Criminal Justice
(DCYJ); that the total child support collected was $3,420.00 and restitution was $18,460.26;
that there were 37 admissions and 35 terminations in June; that the successful program
completion rate was 54.3%; and that the negative termination rate was 45.7%, which
included seven escapes and nine technical/house violations; he reported that there were
three medical emergency incidents and 18 client sanctions imposed; he reported that the
current staff vacancies include four security positions and two case management positions.

Mr. Burton reported 45 Diversion and 34 Transition referrals in June; he reported that CAE
accepted 92.3% of Diversion auto referrals, and 87.5% of Diversion criteria referrals; that
CAE accepted 100% of both Transition auto referrals and Transition criteria referrals in
June; that in June, CAE’s client employment rate was 81.7% and their UA positivity rate
was 4.8%.

Evan Burton reported that in June, CAE’s Assistant Director, Programs Manager, and four
case managers attended SOAR training and Case Planning that was provided by CoreCivic.
He stated that in June, two clients graduated from the IRT program and that to date, the
program has graduated a total of 34 clients.

Mr. Burton then spoke to the Board about the Bridge support group, and the board was
addressed by Rick Dryer and Gino Aviles, who help to run the Convergent 7 Habits
programs at CAE.

The newly instated director of CAE, Mr. Steve Owens, addressed the board and spoke
about his new role.



4™ Judicial District Community Corrections Board (CCB)
MINUTES
July 16", 2025

6. Monthly Reports:

a.

SFY24 Financial Report: MaCain Hildebrand reported that the June 2025 expenditures
were expected to be at 100%; that Embrave was at $6,971,953.06 expended, representing
4.03% overspent; and that CAE was at $6,448,716.29 expended, representing 2.31%
underspent.

Provider Termination Report: MaCain Hildebrand reported that for May 2025,
Community Alternatives of El Paso County had a 54.29% positive/successful termination
rate, a 20% unauthorized absence termination rate, and a 25.71% technical violation
termination rate; he reported that Embrave had a 72.73% positive/successful termination
rate, a 18.18% unauthorized absence termination rate, and a 9.09% technical violation
termination rate; Board members asked questions about how many times a client can have
technical violations before being terminated; Jenner Behan provided clarification to the
Board on this matter, specifically regarding the review process related to individual
behaviors and violations.

Staff Report: MaCain Hildebrand reported that three CDOC case managers from the
Canon Minimum Centers (CMC) cross-trained with our community corrections board staff
on June 24™; that the completed DCJ Community Corrections Financial report required by
SB23-242 has been included with the agenda for board member review; that board staff
are participating in the CAE PACE audit this week; and that at the request of the board, a
presentation on tracked data regarding community corrections absconder totals and known
outcomes will be presented during the August 20, 2025 Board Meeting; the board was
informed that there will be a recovery court graduation for those interested in attending on
July 17 2025.

7. Old Business:

None for this month.

8. New Business:

None for this month.

9. Case Review — Ballot Results: The Chair read the ballot results.

Board/Staff Comments: No additional comments were contributed.

10. Adjournment: Chantel Bruce adjourned the meeting at 1:12 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,




4% Judicial District Community Corrections Board (CCB)
MINUTES
July 16%, 2025

APPROVED

By MacCain Hildebrand at 10:29 am, Aug 08, 2025

MacCain Hildebrand, Justice Services Manager
El Paso County Community Corrections

Confirmed:

Chatt B-

Chantel Bruce, Chair
El Paso County Community Corrections Board



El Paso County Community Corrections Board
Ballot of July 16, 2025

MANDATORY BOARD REVIEW

Pursuant to Section E16 of the OFFENDER PLACEMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES adopted by
the El Paso County Community Corrections Board on July 25, 1997 and amended on January 17,
2024, the results of the ballot are reported to and ratified by the El Paso County Community

Corrections Board on August 20, 2025.
Accept
Offender Name CCD # |Referral [IRT|WRP| JD |Provider|Approve|Reject(Abst
EDWARDS, ALEC 26-0051 D o | | 4 [Ecc 7 5 1
MISNER, SCARLETT 26-0052 D o o | 4 [eae 10 2 1
GRANTHAM-HUGHEY, JESSICA 26-0054 D ol o | 4h [cAE 10 2 1
HANISCH, ASHLEY T 26-0056 D o | o[ # [Ecc 6 5 2
GENDRON, LIONEL 26-0057 D o | o [ 4 [Ecc 8 4 1
MENDEZ-CHAVEZ, FIDEL 26-0058 D o | o [ 4 [Ecc 8 4 1
BAEZ-DIAZ, YASHIRA 26-0059 D O o [ 4 Jeae 8 4 1
NAVARETTE-HERNANDEZ, JAVIER | 26-0060 D o | o | 4 [Ecc 8 4 1
SANDERS, FRANK 26-0061 D O o [ 4 Jeae 7 5 1
PACHECO, DANISHA 26-0064 T Ol o ECC 8 3 2
QUINTANA, NICHOLAS G 26-0065 T Ol o ECC 7 5 1
PENARANDA, ROBERT J 26-0066 T Ol o CAE 10 2 1
MORALES, JUANITA 26-0067 T Ol o CAE 9 3 1
ABENES, LARRY 26-0071 C Ol o ECC 7 5 1
Reject
Offender Name CCD # [Referral [IRT|WRP| JD |Provider|Approve|Reject|Abst

FRESQUEZ, ARIANA 26-0053 D o o [ 4 [eae 6 6 1
MOODY, JAY 26-0055 D o | [ 4 [Ecc 4 8 1
GARDNER, DESIREE 26-0062 D o o [ 4 [eae 4 8 1
ACEVEDO, JESSE 26-0063 D o o [ 4 [eae 5 7 1
ARMOND, JAMES C 26-0068 T Ol o CAE 5 7 1
BOWDEN, JIM C 26-0069 T Ol o CAE 4 8 1
REID, ORION H 26-0070 T Ol o ECC 2 10 1
RICHARDS, JAMES M 26-0072 T Ol o CAE 3 7 0
BRAUN, KARL E 26-0073 T Ol o ECC 4 6 0
FITZGERALD, MICHAEL R 26-0074 T Ol o ECC 1 9 0
MILLER, DYLAN C 26-0075 T Ol o CAE 4 6 0




El Paso County Community Corrections Board
Ballot of July 16, 2025

MANDATORY BOARD REVIEW

Pursuant to Section E16 of the OFFENDER PLACEMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES adopted by
the El Paso County Community Corrections Board on July 25, 1997 and amended on January 17,
2024, the results of the ballot are reported to and ratified by the El Paso County Community
Corrections Board on August 20, 2025.

Legend: CAE = Community Alternatives of El Paso County
ECC = Embrave
C = Condition of Parole with or without IRT
D = Diversion Residential and NonResidential
T = Transition with or without IRT

* = Or another Community Corrections Program within the Jurisdiction



Page 1
El Paso County Community Corrections Board
Electronic Screening Minutes
July 2, 2025

Staff present: Tiffany Weaver
Others present: Kristin Cronk and Cassidy Keltner

The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m.

1. Ballots: Tiffany Weaver tabulated ballots.

Meeting was adjourned at 1:38p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

-~

APPROVED

[By Tiffany Weaver at 10:30 am, Jul 16, 2025J

Tiffany Weaver
Community Corrections Specialist

Confirmed:

Chout -

Chantel Bruce, Chair
El Paso County Community Corrections Board




El Paso County Community Corrections Board
Ballot of July 02, 2025

MANDATORY BOARD REVIEW

Pursuant to Section D (4e) of the OFFENDER PLACEMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES adopted by
the El Paso County Community Corrections Board on July 25, 1997 and amended on February 12,
2020, the results of the ballot are reported to and ratified by the El Paso County Community

Corrections Board on July 16, 2025.
Accept
Offender Name CCD # |Referral |IRT|WRP| JD |Provider*|Approve|Reject|Abst
FLORES, RICHARD 26-0001 D o | o | 1sth [ECC 10 0 0
OSORIO, PEDRO 26-0003 D | o | 15th [cAE 9 2 1
ROMERO, MARCO 26-0004 D | o [ 4 [cAE 7 4 1
GUTIERREZ, JENNIFER 26-0006 D | [ 4 [ecc 7 4 1
MCDONALD, CYNTHIA 26-0007 D 1| | 3d [Ecc 7 4 1
KAUHANE, JAMES 26-0008 D 1| | 4 [Ecc 9 2 1
WHITE, NICOLAS 26-0009 D 1| | 18t [EcC 10 1 1
HARRISON, JOSHUA 26-0010 D | o | 11t [cAE 8 3 1
ANDON, KADEN D 26-0015 T Bl CAE 8 3 1
OHARA, SEAN 26-0017 T Bl CAE 10 1 1
KRUEGER, KYLE A 26-0018 T 0 CAE 10 1 1
PRUITT, CALLISON 26-0019 T O o CAE 9 2 1
HURST, TRAVIS C 26-0021 T Ol O ECC 7 4 1
FRAZIER, STEPHANIE S 26-0022 T Bl CAE 10 1 1
NORWOOD, HEATHER A 26-0023 T Bl ECC 9 2 1
OLIVAS, MIGUEL A 26-0024 T Bl ECC 10 1 1
ORNELAS, CARLITO M 26-0025 T Bl ECC 9 2 1
Reject
Offender Name CCD # |Referral |IRT(WRP| JD [Provider|Approve|Reject|Abst

HAGADORN, BRYAN 26-0002 D | o | 4h [cAE 5 6 1
ORTIZ, MARKUS 26-0005 D | o [ 4h [cAE 5 6 1
RONAS, JASON 26-0011 D O o [ 4 [caE 3 8 1
REED, CHRISTOPHER C 26-0012 T Bl ECC 3 8 1
SOLKO, KATIE 26-0013 T Bl CAE 3 8 1
MEDINA, ALBERT J 26-0014 T Bl CAE 2 8 1
LEE, URRIEL 26-0016 T Bl ECC 3 8 1
FRY, JOSHUA M 26-0020 T Bl ECC 2 9 1




El Paso County Community Corrections Board
Ballot of July 02, 2025

MANDATORY BOARD REVIEW

Pursuant to Section E16 of the OFFENDER PLACEMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES adopted by
the El Paso County Community Corrections Board on July 25, 1997 and amended on January 17,
2024, the results of the ballot are reported to and ratified by the El Paso County Community
Corrections Board on July 16, 2025.

Legend: CAE = Community Alternatives of El Paso County
ECC = Embrave
C = Condition of Parole with or without IRT
D = Diversion Residential and NonResidential
T = Transition with or without IRT
* = Or another Community Corrections Program within the Juridication



Page 1
El Paso County Community Corrections Board
Electronic Screening Minutes
July 23, 2025

Staff present: Daniel Huddleston
Others present: Cassidy Keltner

The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m.

1. Ballots: Daniel Huddleston tabulated ballots.

Meeting was adjourned at 1:03p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
(APPROVED J
5

By Daniet Huddleston at 1:05 pm, Jul 23, 202.
A

Daniel Huddleston
Community Corrections Specialist

Confirmed:

Chedd /%

Chantel Bruce, Chair
El Paso County Community Corrections Board




El Paso County Community Corrections Board
Ballot of July 23, 2025

MANDATORY BOARD REVIEW
Pursuant to Section E16 of the OFFENDER PLACEMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES adopted by

the El Paso County Community Corrections Board on July 25, 1997 and amended on January 17,
2024, the results of the ballot are reported to and ratified by the El Paso County Community

Corrections Board on August 20, 2025.
Accept
Offender Name CCD # |Referral |IRT|WRP| JD |Provider|Approve|Reject|Abst
MORLOCK, TYRELL 26-0078 D | o | 1th [Ecc 9 4 1
UHDEN, ELIJAH 26-0079 D o | | 4 [Ecc 7 6 1
JUSTICE, JOHN 26-0081 D | o | 4 [Ecc 11 2 1
BESS, BRETT 26-0082 D o o [ 11t [ece 10 3 1
KIESELSTEIN, TALEA R 26-0083 D O o [ 4 Jeae 12 1 1
MUNOZ LUNA, DANNY 26-0084 D O o [ e Jeae 7 6 1
LAWRENCE, JASON 26-0085 D O o [ e Jeae 8 5 1
ROBISON, JASON S 26-0088 T Ol o ECC 12 1 1
SANCHEZ, FERNANDO L 26-0089 T Ol o ECC 9 4 1
SIMPSON, MICHAEL A 26-0090 T Ol o ECC 7 6 1
GEFALLER, DEREK L 26-0096 T Ol o CAE 8 5 1
FERNAU, CASEY T 26-0097 T Ol o CAE 11 2 1
GALLEGOS, CARLOS A 26-0098 T Ol o CAE 10 3 1
GOODWIN, JOSHUA K 26-0099 T Ol o CAE 7 6 1
MOLL, KIM C 26-0100 C Ol o ECC 13 0 1
Reject
Offender Name CCD # | Referral [IRT(WRP| JD [Provider|Approve|Reject|Abst

HILBIG, BOSTON 26-0076 D Ol o | 4 [cAE 5 8 1
SWARTZ, NICHOLAS 26-0077 D Ol o | 4 [cAE 5 8 1
BAY, KRISTINE 26-0080 D ol o | 4 [cAE 4 8 2
FLORES-CORONADO, BRIAN A 26-0086 D ol o | 4 [cAE 5 8 1
CHAVARIES, MATTHEW 26-0087 D O o [ e Jeae 3 10 1
SINTAS, GILBERT F 26-0091 T Ol o ECC 6 7 1
SUCHOCKI, MICHAEL J 26-0092 T Ol o ECC 4 9 1
DRESCH, STARSKY L 26-0093 T Ol o CAE 2 11 1
MARTINEZ, STEVEN J 26-0094 T Ol o CAE 3 9 2
JETT, JOHNNY D 26-0095 T Ol o CAE 6 7 1




El Paso County Community Corrections Board
Ballot of July 23, 2025

MANDATORY BOARD REVIEW

Pursuant to Section E16 of the OFFENDER PLACEMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES adopted by
the El Paso County Community Corrections Board on July 25, 1997 and amended on January 17,
2024, the results of the ballot are reported to and ratified by the El Paso County Community
Corrections Board on August 20, 2025.

Legend: CAE = Community Alternatives of El Paso County
ECC = Embrave
C = Condition of Parole with or without IRT
D = Diversion Residential and NonResidential
T = Transition with or without IRT

* = Or another Community Corrections Program within the Jurisdiction



Page 1
El Paso County Community Corrections Board
Electronic Screening Minutes
July 30, 2025

Staff present: Daniel Huddleston
Others present: Tiffany Weaver and Cassidy Keltner

The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m.

1. Ballots: Daniel Huddleston tabulated ballots.

Meeting was adjourned at 1:24p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

[APPROVED 3|

By Daniel Huddleston at 1:24 pm, Juf 30, 2025

Daniel Huddleston
Community Corrections Specialist

Confirmed:

Chadd_ 2,

Chantel Bruce, Chair

_El Paso County Community Corrections Board




El Paso County Community Corrections Board
Ballot of July 30, 2025
MANDATORY BOARD REVIEW
Pursuant to Section E16 of the OFFENDER PLACEMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES adopted by

the El Paso County Community Corrections Board on July 25, 1997 and amended on January 17,
2024, the results of the ballot are reported to and ratified by the El Paso County Community

Corrections Board on August 20, 2025.
Accept
Offender Name CCD # | Referral |IRT|WRP| JD [Provider|Approve|Reject(Abst
FLORES, SAMANTA 26-0101 D o | | 4 [Ecc 10 3 1
OWENS-HAILEY, JOSTYN 26-0103 D o | | 4 [Ecc 11 2 1
GUTIERREZ, ANDREA 26-0104 D | o | 4 [Ecc 12 1 1
FASULO, TAVIS 26-0105 D o | o[ # [Ecc 9 4 1
QUINTANA, KENNETH 26-0107 D O o [ 4 Jeae 7 6 1
RIEFENBERG, JON 26-0108 D o o [ 11t [Ece 8 5 1
SALTZ, CODY 26-0109 D o o [ 1t [ece 8 5 1
HUERTA, WILMER 26-0110 D O o [ 4 Jeae 8 5 1
MARTINEZ, FREDDIE 26-0111 D O o [ 4 Jeae 7 6 1
GONZALES, AVIEL 26-0112 D o o[ et [cae 9 4 1
MILLER, CHRISTOPHER L 26-0114 T Ol o CAE 10 3 1
FILBRUN, JENNIFER M 26-0115 T Ol o ECC 11 2 1
NEAL, DUANE T 26-0116 T Ol o CAE 7 6 1
MARQUEZ, CRYSTAL M 26-0117 T Ol o ECC 12 1 1
BRAATZ, ZACHARY P 26-0120 T Ol o ECC 7 6 1
HENDRY, TOSCH C 26-0122 T Ol o ECC 9 4 1
MITCHELL, DAVEN J 26-0123 T Ol o ECC 9 4 1
PICKETT, WILLIAM N 26-0125 C Ol o CAE 10 3 1
Reject
Offender Name CCD # [Referral [IRT|WRP| JD |Provider|Approve|Reject|Abst

MALDONADO, RAFAEL 26-0102 D ol o | 4h [cAE 6 7 1
DELANEY, GABRIELLE 26-0106 D O o [ e Jeae 3 10 1
TRUJILLO, BOE M 26-0113 T Ol o CAE 3 10 1
VARGAS, ZETH A 26-0118 T Ol o CAE 2 11 1
JOHNSON, DANNY L 26-0119 T Ol o CAE 5 8 1
MCMULEN, WILLIAM 26-0121 T Ol o ECC 5 8 1
SUMMERS, VINCENT L 26-0124 T Ol o ECC 5 8 1




El Paso County Community Corrections Board
Ballot of July 30, 2025

MANDATORY BOARD REVIEW

Pursuant to Section E16 of the OFFENDER PLACEMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES adopted by
the El Paso County Community Corrections Board on July 25, 1997 and amended on January 17,
2024, the results of the ballot are reported to and ratified by the El Paso County Community
Corrections Board on August 20, 2025.

Legend: CAE = Community Alternatives of El Paso County
ECC = Embrave
C = Condition of Parole with or without IRT
D = Diversion Residential and NonResidential
T = Transition with or without IRT

* = Or another Community Corrections Program within the Jurisdiction



Community Corrections Board

Agenda Item Summary

Agenda Item Title: Program Report / Embrave (ECC)
Agenda Date: August 20, 2025

Agenda Item Number: 5-a

Presenter: Mark Wester, Executive Director, ECC
Information: X

Endorsement:

Background Information:
Program to provide insight and information on facility demographics, admissions and

terminations, facility staffing, activity, and other notable information.

Recommended Motion:
N/A



Embrave VENDOR REPORT
Month Ju Iy YEAR 2025 Facility Capacity: 273
DCJ Allocation: 234
FACILITY DEMOGRAPHICS FINANCIAL FEES
Di jon Out Total Fi ial
Diversion: 113 IRT: 26 version U 14 Totgl Financial Total
of District: Fees
Transition: 85 RDDT: 0 Child Support $3,569.00
Condition of Parole: 11 CRP: 12 Restitution $4,050.00
Condition of Probation: 4 Non CRP SO: 8
Non-Residential: 69 Criteria Cases: 159
ADMISSIONS Specialized Treatment
i - Intensive . . Community
Condit f | Condit f R | Dual
Diversion Transition ondl |(|)n © on tl) Io.n © Non-Residential: Residential DIZS'SEQE?RD;?) Responsibility Total
Parole Probation Treatment (IRT) 8 Program (CRP)
Total 23 | 22 | 0 5 7 | 12 | 0 | 0 | 69
TERMINATIONS Specialized Treatment Non-Residential
Terminations Terminations
. ) . Condition of | Condition of Jintensive Residential| Residential Dual Commu.n?t.y
Diversion Transition | bati Treatment (IRT) Diagnosis (RDDT) Responsibility Total ;
Parole Probation g Program (CRP)
Successful 11 7 3 0 7 0 0 28 3
Negative 15 8 0 1 0 0 28 1
Total 26 15 3 0 11 0 0 56 4
Non-Residential
Termination Reasons Total Percentage Termination Staffing Budgeted FTE's New Hires Terminated Vacant FTE
Reasons
Successful Program 28 50.0% 3 Security 45.6 2 5 5
Client Status Change - (Transfer
to Another CC, Transfer to IRT, 11 NA 1 Case Management 22 1 2 6
Reject After Accept.. - See CCIB)
Negative 28 50.0% 0 Treatment Staff 10 0 0 0
Escape 18 32.1% 1 Admn 11 0 0 1
House/Technical Violations 10 17.9% 0 ST LIS i 7 1 2 3
(Other)
Commltted New Crime - 0 0.0% 0 Non-Residential 2.4 0 0 0
During Placement
W?rrant/Pending Crime - 1 1.8% 1
Prior to Placement




NOTIFICATIONS & INCIDENT/CRITICAL REPORTS

C t Month
Type Diverson Transition COPr COP Total Type % Previous Month Rate
New Criminal Offense 0 0 0 0 0 Employment Rate 69.26% 67.50%
Assault 0 0 0 0 0 UA Positive Rate 1.6% 3.8%
Fighting 0 0 0 0 0 Raw UA Data
Possession of Dangerous Drugs 0 0 0 0 0 Total/Positive 1250/ 21 1250/ 48
Current Month Previous Month
11 > 0 > 1 Type Count Count
Unauthorized Absence: Escape 11 6 1 0 18 Client Grievances 10 4
Escape - Confirmed . . ]
Less than 2 hours - Late return Sanctions 85 36 2 7 130 Citizen Complaints 0 0
Medical Emergency 2 2 1 0 5 IRT Waitlist 6 12
Health Related Outbreak (Bed Bugs, COVID, FLU, .
0 0 0 0 0 Dual Supervision 0 0
etc.
0 0 0 0 (]
PREA Allegation 0 0 0 0 0
Use of Force 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 109 49 4 12 174
Diversion Criteria Referrals Diversion Auto Referrals
Referrals Approved Denied Referrals Approved Denied Total Referrals
37 28 9 14 14 0 51
Transition Criteria Referrals Transition Auto Referrals
Referrals Approved Denied Referrals Approved Denied Total Referrals
23 21 2 8 8 0 31
Jenner Behan 8/14/2025

Director Signature/Designee DATE



PACE Audit

1. Strategy: Enhance case management ranks and training to improve client skill training and outcomes. SKILL TRAIN - FACTOR 4

STAFF DEVELOPMENT: [Case management meeting was held for team building and to identify what case management is doing well.

2. Strategy: Review and enhance level system with measurable and objective components to increase transparency and consistency of client reinforcement and
progression. (Developing and utilizing a level system (5-1) with measurable components creates transparency and consistency in client movement and
reinforcement through earned privileges)

PROGRAM

DEVELOPMENT:
Embrave had sex offender specific staff attend the SOMB conference in July

3950 RENOVATION:

CS-010: Random
Headcouts & Facility
Walkthroughs

CS-042: Job Search

CS-060: Substance
Testing Process

OMA-020: Milieu
Management

Additional Comments:




Community Corrections Board

Agenda Item Summary

Agenda Item Title: Program Report / Community Alternatives of El Paso
County (CAE)
Agenda Date: August 20, 2025

Agenda Item Number: 5-b

Presenter: Steve Owens, Facility Director, CAE
Information: X
Endorsement:

Background Information:

Program to provide insight and information on facility demographics, admissions and
terminations, facility staffing, activity, and other notable information.

Recommended Motion:
N/A



Month July YEAR 2025 Facility Capacity: 236
DCJ Allocation: 240
FACILITY DEMOGRAPHICS FINANCIAL FEES
Diversion: 105 IRT: 10 D!ver.smn Out of 4 Total Financial Fees Total
District: -
Transition: 112 RDDT: 0 Child Support $2,450.00
Condition of Parole: 9 CRP: 13 Restitution $13,948.00
Condition of Probation: 0 Non CRP SO: 3
Non-Residential: 57 Criteria Cases: 136
ADMISSIONS Specialized Treatment
i . . Condition of Condition of Non- Int.ensw.e Residential Dual CommtJ.n!t.\/
Diversion Transition Parole Probation Res—idential' Residential Diagnosis (RDDT) Responsibility Total
- - — | Treatment (IRT) 8 Program (CRP)
Total 20 14 0 0 3 10 0 0 47
ST A Non-Residential
TERMINATIONS Specialized Treatment Terminations Terminations
. .. Intensive . . Community
Diversion Transition Cor;dltulan of Cch)ndkl)n:n of Residential giZSI:(f:iZI?ILB;?) Responsibility Total Non-Residential
rarole rrobauon Treatment (IRT) g Program (CRP)
Successful 4 10 0 0 5 - - 19 2
Negative 7 7 1 0 1 - - 16 3
Total 11 17 1 0 6 0 0 35 5
PROGRAM TERMINATIONS FACILITY STAFFING
Non-Residential
Termination Reasons Total Percentage Termination Staffing Budgeted FTE's New Hires Terminated Vacant FTE
Reasons
Successful Program 19 54.3% 2 Security 29 3 3 2
Client Status Change -
(Transfer to Another CC, Transfer 4 NA 1 Case 18 1 1 1
to IRT, Reject After Accept.. - See Management
cciB)
Negative 16 45.7% 0 Treatment Staff 4 0 0 0
Escape 9 25.7% 1 Admn 6 0 2 2
H.ouse_/TechnlcaI 6 17.1% 1 Support Staff . 0 0 0
Violations (Other)
Committed New Crime - 1 0.0% 2 Non-Residential 0 0 0
During Placement
Wfarrant/Pendmg Crime - 0 0.0% 0
Prior to Placement




NOTIFICATIONS & INCIDENT/CRITICAL REPORTS

Current Month
Type Diverson Transition COPr COoP Total Type Rate Previous Month Rate
New Criminal Offense 0 1 0 0 1 Employment Rate 85.0% 81.7%
Assault 0 0 0 0 0 UA Positive Rate 7.1% 4.8%
Fighting 0 0 0 0 0 Raw UA Data
Possession of Dangerous Drugs 0 1 0 0 1 Total/Positive 1201/86 939/46
Current Month
26 22 0 9 57 Type Previous Month Count
- e Count
Unauthorized Absence:
Escape - Confirmed Escape 5 4 0 0 9 Client Grievances 0 0
Less than 2 hours - Late Sanctions 10 12 0 1 23 Citizen Complaints 0 0
return -
Medical Emergency 3 0 0 0 3 Dual Supervision 0 0
Health Related Outbreak (Bed Bugs, COVID, FLU, 0 0 0 0 0
etc.)
0 0 0 0 0
PREA Allegation 0 0 0 0 0
Use of Force 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 44 40 0 10 94
Diversion Criteria Referrals Diversion Auto Referrals
Referrals Approved Denied Referrals Approved Denied Total Referrals
32 25 7 8 8 0 40
Transition Criteria Referrals Transition Auto Referrals
Referrals Approved Denied Referrals Approved Denied Total Referrals
35 35 0 3 3 0 38
Steve Owens 8/15/2025
Director Signature/Designee DATE




PACE Audit

Areas of Focus: STAFF DEVELOPMENT:SD-070, SD-090 and SD-100 Train all staff in the areas of MI/SOA-R/Staff Impact and Progression Matrix

Fidelity Specialist and Case
Manager Supervisor to
measure staff progress via
observation and auditing of
case plans.

In July, DCJ came down for CAE's PACE audit. Case Managers and Case Manager Supervisor did vitrual training with GEQ's corporate office. In June, we had our
Assistant Director, Programs and four case managers attend SOAR training and Case Planning that was provided by CoreCivic.

Skill Development with Directed Practice: Staff to demonstrate milieu management for effective role modeling and responsivity.

Fidelity Specialist and Case
Manager Supervisor to In July's All Staff, training on Suicide Prevention and how to do a pat search correctly was completed. During monthly meetings, professional communication is
measure staff progress via |discussed with staff regarding resident interactions. During management rounds, both Security and Case management staff were observed having meaningful
observation and auditing of |contacts with the resident population.

case plans.

Search and Contraband
Training for staff:
Scheduled and Completed |Facility searches of bunks and common areas continue in accordance with policy.
Training *CS-30
Contraband




*CS Substance Use
Monitoring Drug
Interdiction Events and
Outcomes: Security
Manager and Fidelity
Specialist observations,
audits, findings and actions
taken.

On 12/5/24, a K9 search was conducted. No major contraband was found. In November, we saw an uptake of "Spice use." Since it became a safety concern for staff
and other residents, several residents were reviewed for terminated that had positive UA's and emergency medical response (AMR), and paraphernalia on them.
Security staff are carrying narcan on their person. Five total Narcan kits are available on each shift, to include additional pouches for staff to sign out.

*CS Client Monitoring :
Random off-site monitoring
of job search, work, pass
and furlough activity CS*
50 Recording Authorized
Absences

*Client Supervision - CS
Facility Checks

Glympse is required for every resident prior to leaving must show proof to staff. The Glympse location app is being utilized to assist with whereabouts checks.

Fidelity Specialist and Case
Manager Supervisor
observations, audits, and
actions taken.

The Fidelity Specialist and Case Manager Supervisor continue to conduct monthly audits to identify any deficiencies. Follow up occurs to ensure those issues are
resolved.

Additional Comments: In July, we graduated 5 from our IRT program.




Community Corrections Board

Agenda Item Summary

Agenda Item Title: SFY25 Financial Report

Agenda Date: August 20, 2025

Agenda Item Number: 6-a

Presenter: MacCain Hildebrand, Justice Services Manager
Information: X

Endorsement:

Background Information:

Pursuant to Article III Section 5 of the El Paso County Community Corrections Board
(CCB) By-Laws, the Board is responsible for monitoring and overseeing compliance with
state and local standards. To ensure fiscal responsibility of the local contracts, the Board
has requested a monthly financial report that explains all expenditures, by service type,
for the local service providers.

El Paso County continues to work with the Division of Criminal Justice/Office of
Community Corrections on matters related to contracting and allocation.

The billing documents (invoicing) for the July billing cycle have been completed.
Recommended Motion:

N/A



Community Corrections Board

Agenda Item Summary

Agenda Item Title: Provider Termination Reports — July 2025
Agenda Date: August 20, 2025

Agenda Item Number: 6-b

Presenter: MacCain Hildebrand, Justice Services Manager
Information: X

Endorsement:

Background Information:

Pursuant to Article II of the El Paso County Community Corrections Board (CCB)
Bylaws and section 4a of Colorado Revised Statute 17-27-103, as amended, local
community corrections boards are responsible for making assessments on the number of
offenders who have an unauthorized absence from custody. The data is based on reports

prepared by the Community Corrections staff pursuant to Section 11 of the Colorado
Revised Statute 17-27-104.

The attached Provider Termination Reports are for July 2025.

Recommended Motion:

N/A



CAE Residential Terminations - July 2025

Negative Terminations,
Committed New Crime:
2.86%

Negative Terminations,
Technical Violation:
17.14%

Positive Terminations:
54.29%

Negative Terminations,
Unauthorized Absence:
25.71%

*Neutral Terminations not Included



Embrave Residential Terminations - July 2025

Negative Terminations,
Technical Violation:
17.86%

Positive Terminations:

50%

Negative Terminations,
Unauthorized Absence:
32.14%

*Neutral Terminations not Included



Community Corrections Board

Agenda Item Summary

Agenda Item Title: Staff Report — August 2025

Agenda Date: August 20, 2025

Agenda Item Number: 6-c

Presenter: MacCain Hildebrand, Justice Services Manager
Information: X

Endorsement:

Background Information:

Staff will provide insight and information on upcoming events, activities, and/or
information otherwise not specifically covered as a separate agenda item. Topics covered
under this agenda item will generally consist of the following:

e Board staff observed the Embrave IRT and SOSTCC Specialized audit on August 4"
to the 6™,

e (assidy Keltner and Mark Allison provided training on the El Paso County reporting
requirements to Embrave staff during their monthly All Staff Meeting on August 12

e Please see attached the Community Corrections 4" Quarter, SFY25 Activty Report
and DCJ Referral Report

Recommended Motion:

N/A



EL Paso County — Community Corrections
April 2025 — June 2025

4th Quarter FY 24-25 Activity — Community Corrections

161 Successful Residential Completions
o 61.45% residential successful completion rate

101 Unsuccessful Residential Completions
o 38.55% residential unsuccessful completion rate
= 43 Technical Violation
= 54 Unauthorized Absence
= 3 New Crime
= 1 Warrant/Pending Crime — Prior to Placement
= 51 Neutral

13 Successful Non-Residential Completions

o 59.09% non-residential successful completion rate
= 1 Committed New Crime
= 0 Technical Violation
= 0 Escape
= 0 Warrant/Pending Crime — Prior to Placement
= 7 Returned to Residential Status
= 1 Other

324 Board reviewed referrals with 203 accepted. This equates to a 62.65% acceptance
rate.

o 2 Board referrals were Rejected after Accepted (RAA) by the providers

o 0 Diversion referrals were Rejected After Accepted (RAA) by the providers
121 board rejected. This equates to 37.35% rejection rate.

589 Total Referrals (Diversion, Transitions, Condition of Probation (COPr), Condition of
Parole (COP), and ISP-I
o 213 Transition Referrals
= 68 Transition Referrals Denied by Board
= 16 Transition Referrals Denied by Facility
56.41% of Transition Referrals Approved by Board
o 92.49% of Transition Referrals Approved by Facility

O

o 311 Diversion Referrals
= 52 Diversion Referrals Denied by Board
= 40 Diversion Referrals Denied by Facility
66.01% of Diversion Referrals Approved by Board
o 87.46% of Diversion Referrals Approved by Facility

o 33 Condition of Parole Referrals

= 0 Condition of Parole Denied by Board

= 2 Condition of Parole Referrals Denied by Facility
o 100% Condition of Parole Referrals Approved by Board
o 93.93% Condition of Parole Referrals Approved by Facility



@)
@)

2 ISP-I Direct Referrals
1 ISP-I Direct Denied by Board
50% ISP-I Direct Referrals Approved by Board

30 Condition of Probation Referrals

= 0 Condition of Probation Denied by Board

= 2 Condition of Probation Referrals Denied by Facility
The Board Reviewed 2 COPr Referrals
93.33% Condition of Probation Referrals Approved by Facility

e $46,308.54 in total Correctional Treatment Funds usage for clients in 4" JD

@)
©)

$5,344.54 in Correctional Treatment Funds for clients at Embrave
$40,964 in Correctional Treatment Funds for clients at CAE

4th Quarter Referral Reviews FY 24-25

Total # Transition

Total # Board Reviewed Transition

213 156
Total # Condition of Parole (COP) Total # Board Reviewed COP
33 11
Total # ISP - | Direct Total # Board Reviewed ISP - |
2 2
Total # Diversion Total # Board Reviewed Diversion
311 153
Total # Condition of Probation (COPT) Total # Board Reviewed COPr
30 2

4th Quarter Referral Reviews FY 24-25

Total Jurisdiction Referrals
589

Total Board Reviewed Referrals
324




Appendix A
Residential Community Corrections Referral Reporting
Quarter 4, FY25

Transition | Transition % of Diversion | Diversion % of . SCILDALTIN | G % Of

Judicial | Transition | Referrals | Referrals | Transition | Diversion | Referrals | Referrals | Diversion Condition | of Parole | of Parole | Condition
District [ Referrals | Denied by | Denied by | Referrals | Referrals | Denied by | Denied by | Referrals of Parole Reffarrals Refferrals of Parole

Board Facility | Approved Board Facility | Approved Referrals | Denied by Denu.ec.:i by | Referrals

Board Facility | Approved

1% 161 48 74 24% 125 11 11 82% 0 0 100%
2" 152 37 1 75% 71 11 0 85% 0 0 100%
a* 213 68 16 61% 311 52 40 70% 33 0 2 94%
6" 29 4 17 28% 26 4 0 85% 0 0 -
7" 39 33 0 15% 52 18 0 65% 3 0 57%
g 71 4 20 66% 130 4 23 79% 11 1 1 82%
9™ 22 17 2 14% 18 5 1 67% 2 1 0 50%
10" 65 30 17 28% 47 5 74% 6 0 6 0%
12" 45 34 0 24% 86 47 0 45% 9 7 0 22%
13" 7 4 0 43% 36 16 0 56% 3 1 0 67%
15" 22 19 0 14% 29 18 0 38% 0 0 0 -
17" 151 57 49 30% 336 90 33 63% 10 5 3 20%
18" 160 51 34 47% 151 16 3 87% 5 0 0 100%
19" 70 21 31 26% 103 26 9 66% 5 0 5 0%
20" 51 12 20 37% 44 8 0 82% 0 3 40%
21% * 40 33 0 18% 99 23 0 77% 17 2 0 88%
Totals 1298 472 281 42% 1664 356 125 71% 116 20 20 66%
*Due to the 21st JD’s screening processes, this is the inclusive number for both the board and facility denials. The facility and screening
committee review the criteria cases at the same time.

Page 1of 1



Community Corrections Board

Agenda Item Summary

Agenda Item Title: Request to Reconsider Community Corrections Placement
Agenda Date: August 20, 2025

Agenda Item Number: 8a

Presenter: MacCain Hildebrand, Justice Services Manager

Vote: X

Background Information:

On June 11, 2025, the El Paso County Community Corrections Board (CCB) rejected the
Diversion referral for Carolyn Murray (El Paso County Cases 24CR20, 24CR2497,
25CR1256, 25CR1272)

Following the rejection, Public Defender Monica Uzpen submitted a Request for
Reconsideration on behalf of Carolyn Murray on August 8, 2025. Ms. Uzpen cited
newly discovered relevant information not available at the time of the original screening,
which she contends may have prevented fair consideration. It has been determined that
Ms. Uzpen has met the established criteria for the CCB to reconsider the placement of
Carolyn Murray. The original Diversion referral for Carolyn Murray for El Paso County
cases 24CR20, 24CR2497, 25CR1256, 25CR1272A, along with a copy of Ms. Uzpen’s
Request for Reconsideration, were provided to all board members in advance of today’s
meeting for reference and review.

In accordance with current Offender Placement Review Procedures, Reconsideration
After Rejection by either Vendor(s) or CCB (not after termination from a program)
section E.17, the Board is being asked by an officer of the court to reconsider Carolyn
Murray’s case.

17.  Reconsideration After Rejection by either Vendor(s) or CCB (not after
termination from a program)

A CCB member or an officer of the court or the executive branch of government
may request that a case be reconsidered subject to the following criteria:

a. The request must be in writing and directed to the Chair of the CCB
through the CCP staff-

b. The request must be limited to three (3) pages, including exhibits.

c. The request must cite one or more of the following as its justification:



1. An irregularity in the original screening which prevented fair
consideration.

2. Misconduct on the part of the CCB.

3. Newly discovered relevant information not available at the time of the
original screening *
*If a psychological evaluation is to be considered, it must be included
with the original referral packet and shall not be the sole basis for
reconsideration; or

4. An error in applying CCB written criteria.

As per our current Offender Placement Review Procedures, Section E 17. e.
2. If the CCB unanimously agrees to reconsider the placement, the procedures
for offender placement review will be implemented.

3. Ifreconsideration does not receive unanimous approval, the original action of
the CCB shall stand.

If approved for reconsideration, an updated Diversion Referral application for Client
Murray would be obtained and placed on the next ballot for the board to review.

Recommended Motion:

The board is being asked to determine if Client Carolyn Murray should be reconsidered
for community corrections placement.



OFFICE OF THE STATE PuBLIC DEFENDER

MEGAN A. RING
STATE PuBLIC DEFENDER

August 8, 2025

To Whom it May Concern,

I am writing on behalf of my client, H who was recently rejected from
Community Corrections, to request that reconsideration be given in her case pursuant to E.
17(c)(3). This section allows for a vote for reconsideration in situations where there is “newly
discovered relevant information not available at the time of the original screening”.

Specifically, this board rej ected- from Community Corrections citing that
there had been a previous failure when had been sentenced to Embrave. On April
16%, 2024* was sentenced to Embrave for a period of two years, with a stay of
execution given to her for April 18" at 2 pm. Unfortunately, was unable to go to
Community Corrections due to an involuntary 72 hour civil commitment hold beginning on
April 17® 2024. On April 18% of 2024, was still subject to that hold. On April 24®, a
rejection after acceptance was filed citing that failed to report as instructed. In
addition, that hold was extended on April 20 for an additional 5 days. Due to this Boards
requirement that the request and accompanying exhibits do not exceed 3 pages, I was unable to
attach documentation supporting the latter portion, but will be happy to supplement this to the
board upon request.

This information only just came to my attention as_ suffers from a traumatic
brain injury that impairs her memory. After beginning the screening process, she recalled that
she had been granted a community corrections sentence in the past but that she had been unable
to attend due to the involuntary hold. I have attached appropriate documentation of this hold for
the board to review, which I believe was unavailable at the time of the initial screening.

In my few months of 1‘epresenti11g_ I have come to know her as someone who
has managed to overcome a lot of her own mental health struggles and find stability through her
current relationship and opportunities afforded to her since that time. She does suffer from a
traumatic brain injury that impacts her memory, and at the time of receiving the contemplated
offer had completely forgotten that she had ever at a previous time been accepted into
Community Corrections. Since that time she has learned how to take notes for herself to aid in
her understanding and memory, and has been put on the right balance of medications to assist
her in maintaining her mental health.

I believe that 1s a good candidate for Community Corrections, and hope that
the court will re-consider her rejection.

Sincerely,

Monica Uzpen
Bar #59129

COLORADO SPRINGS REGIONAL OFFICE e 30 EAST PIKES PEAK AVENUE, SUITE 200
COLORADO SPRINGS, COLORADO 80903
PHONE: (719) 475-1235 o FAX: (719) 475-1476



E COLORADO
gy | Bahaviaral Health
A AdEnnisnEariam
RIGHTS OF PATIENTS

EMERGENCY MENTAL HEALTH HOLD

C.R.S. 27-65-105 to 106, as amended.

You are being held on an INVOLUNTARY emergency mental health hold. The following rights apply to you
as you receive evaluation and care. These rights must be provided to you in written form and explained to
you in a language or manner so that you may understand. The facility must help you in exercising your
rights listed below.

Your rights as provided here may only be denied if access to an item, program, or service would cause you to
destabilize or would create a danger to yourself or others. Any such determination must be made by a
licensed provider involved in your care. Denial of any right listed here must be entered into your record and
must be made available, upon request, to you, your legal guardian, and/or your attorney.

** If you feel at any time your rights have been violated, you have the right to file a
complaint against the facility with the Behavioral Health Administration and/or the
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment. Your patient representative
will assist you in making a formal complaint or grievance if requested. **

1. REASON FOR DETAINMENT. You have the right to be told the reason for your detainment and the
limitations of that detainment. You have the right to not be detained in a jail, lockup, or other place used
for confinement of persons charged with or convicted of penal offenses.

2. INFORMED. You will be told the reason for any holding at a facility and the limits of this holding. You
will be evaluated to decide your mental health condition and find the best direction for your care. You
have the right to receive care that is provided safely, by a skilled professional, that will treat you humanely.

04/17/2024 AT 12:14:16 PM )
Your emergency mental health hold began: (date/time)

**There is potential for your hold to end before 72 hours or extended longer than 72
hours depending on your specific needs. **

3. TELEPHONES. You have the right to have reasonable access to telephones or other communication
devices. You have the right to make and receive calls or communications in private. You have the right to
keep and use your cellphone, unless access to your cellphone causes you to destabilize or will result in
danger to yourself or others as determined by a provider, facility staff member, or security personnel
involved in your care.

4. CLOTHING AND POSSESSIONS. You have the right to wear your own clothing, to keep and use your
personal possessions, and to keep and be allowed to spend a reasonable sum of your own money. The
facility may temporarily restrict your access to personal clothing or possessions until a safety assessment is
completed. A licensed medical or behavioral health professional must conduct a safety assessment as soon
as possible. If the facility restricts your access to personal clothing or personal possessions, the facility is
required to inform you as to why these things are being restricted. The facility shall periodically conduct
additional safety assessments to determine whether you may possess your personal clothing and
possessions, with the goal of restoring your rights.

5. YOUR ATTORNEY. You have the right to retain and consult with an attorney at any time. If you are
being detained by an emergency medical services facility under a subsequent emergency mental health
hold, the facility must notify the court and the court shall appoint an attorney to represent you. Non-
emergency medical services facilities are not required to retain an attorney on your behalf, but they must

State of Colorado, Behavioral Health Administration
Form M-2 (Rev. 12/2023), Emergency Hold Rights



allow you to contact an attorney. You must have access to your attorney at any time, including but not
limited to, during non-visiting hours. The facility must not deny any request to speak with your attorney.

6. PATIENT REPRESENTATIVE. Within 24 hours of making a request, you have the right to see and
receive the services of a patient representative who has no direct or indirect clinical, administrative, or
financial responsibility for you.

7. MEDICATIONS. You have the right to refuse medications. Any treatments offered during your
emergency mental health hold require your consent. This does not include the use of emergency
medications.

8. VOLUNTARY EVALUATION. You have the right to request a change in legal status. You may request
to receive an evaluation of your treatment and care needs on a voluntary basis. If you do not feel that you
are able to truly make a voluntary decision, you may continue to be held involuntarily.

9. NO DISCRIMINATION. You have the right to the same consideration and treatment as anyone else
regardless of race, ethnicity, religion, culture, spoken language, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity
or expression, socioeconomic status, or physical or mental disability. You have the right to be treated
fairly, with respect and recognition of your dignity and individuality by all employees of the facility with
whom you come into contact.

10. BASIC NEEDS. You have the right to appropriate access to water, hygiene products, and food. You have
the right to have your nutritional needs met in a manner that is consistent with recognized dietary practices.

11. VISITORS. You have the right to have frequent and convenient opportunities to meet with visitors in
accordance with the facility’s current visitor guidelines. You have the right to see your attorney, chosen
clergyperson, or physician at any time.

12. RELIGIOUS PRACTICES. You have the right to continue to practice your religion while on a mental
health hold.

13. CONFIDENTIALITY. You have the right to have your records remain confidential, except as required by
law.

14. FINGERPRINTS AND PHOTOGRAPHS. You have the right not to be fingerprinted except as required
by law. You have the right not to be photographed, except upon admission to the facility for purposes for
identification and administration. Any photographs taken by the facility are confidential and must not be
released except pursuant to court order. Any nonmedical photographs may not be taken or used without
appropriate consent or authorization.

15. RECORDS. You have the right to have your information and records disclosed to family members and lay
persons as chosen by you. However, if you are a ward or conservatee, your guardian may designate to
whom your records or information may be disclosed.

By signing below, I am acknowledging that these rights have been explained to me in a way I understand. I am also
acknowledging that I received a copy of these rights.

4/17/2024
Patient or legal guardian Date

4/17/2024
Facility Representative Date

State of Colorado, Behavioral Health Administration
Form M-2 (Rev. 12/2023), Emergency Hold Rights



	VERNON STEWART, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR  
	COMMUNITY RESOURCES DEPARTMENT | JUSTICE SERVICES DIVISION 
	Community Corrections Board (CCB)  August 20, 2025, 12:15 p.m. - 1:45 p.m. Meeting Agenda 
	Next meeting date: Wednesday, September 17, 2025, at 12:15 p.m. 



